
 

 

                                

Page 1 

 

 

AGENDA                
 
 
Meeting: WILTSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

Place: Committee Room A - Council Offices, Monkton Park, Chippenham 

SN15 1ER 

Date: Thursday 1 February 2018 

Time: 10.30 am 

 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Emily Higson, of Democratic Services, 
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line 01225 713990 or email 
emily.higson@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
 

 
Membership: 
 
Cllr Junab Ali - Swindon Borough Council 
Cllr Abdul Amin - Swindon Borough Council 
Cllr Alan Bishop - Swindon Borough Council 
Cllr Richard Britton - Wiltshire Council 
Cindy Creasy - Co-Opted Independent Member 
Cllr Anna Cuthbert - Wiltshire Council 
Cllr Ross Henning - Wiltshire Council 
Chris Henwood - Co-Opted Independent Member 
Cllr Peter Hutton - Wiltshire Council 
Cllr Brian Mathew - Wiltshire Council 
Cllr John Smale - Wiltshire Council 
Cllr Caryl – Sydney-Smith – Swindon Borough Council 

 

 
Substitutes: 
 
Peter Evans - Wiltshire Council 
Cllr Sue Evans - Wiltshire Council 
Cllr Sarah Gibson - Wiltshire Council 
Cllr Ruth Hopkinson - Wiltshire Council 
Cllr Gordon King - Wiltshire Council 
 



 

 

                                

Page 2 

 

 
 
 
 

RECORDING AND BROADCASTING NOTIFICATION 
Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the 

Council’s website at http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv.  At the start of the meeting, the 
Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being recorded. The images and 

sound recordings may also be used for training purposes within the Council. 
 

By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being recorded and to the use of 
those images and recordings for broadcasting and/or training purposes. 

 
The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public. 

 
Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the 

Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability 
resulting from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings 
they accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in 

relation to any such claims or liabilities. 
 

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is 
available on the Council’s website along with this agenda and available on request. 

If you have any queries please contact Democratic Services using the contact details 
above. 

 
 

http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv/


 

 
                                

Page 3 

 

 

AGENDA 

 
 

 Part I 

 Items to be considered when the meeting is open to the public 

 

1   Apologies for Absence  

 

2   Declarations of interest  

 To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by 
the Standards Committee. 

 

3   Chairman's Announcements  

 

4   Public Participation  

 The Panel welcomes contributions from members of the public. 
 
Statements 
 
If you wish to make a statement at this meeting on any item on this agenda, 
please register to do so at least 10 minutes prior to the meeting. Speakers are 
permitted to speak for up to 3 minutes on any agenda item. Please contact the 
officer named on the first page of the agenda for any further clarification. 
 
Questions 
 
Members of the public are able to ask questions in relation to the responsibilities 
and functions of the Panel at each meeting. Those wishing to ask questions are 
required to give notice of any such questions in writing to the Head of 
Democratic Services at Wiltshire Council no later than 5.00 pm on Friday 26 
January 2018. Please contact the officer named on the first page of the agenda 
for further advice. Questions may be asked without notice if the Chairman 
decides that the matter is urgent. 

 

5   Formal consideration of PCC Precept proposal  

 For the Police and Crime Panel to receive formally and vote on the Police and 
Crime Commissioner’s proposed Council Tax precept for the year 2018-19 

 



 

 
                                

Page 4 

 

6   Member Questions  

 

7   Forward Work Plan  

 To note the forward work plan 

 

8   Future meeting dates  

 To note the future meeting dates below: 
 

 22 March 2018 – Corn Exchange, Devizes 
 

 14 June 2018 - Corn Exchange, Devizes 
 

 27 September – County Hall, Trowbridge 
 

 6 December 2018 – Civic Offices, Swindon 

 

 Part II 

 Item(s) during whose consideration it is recommended that the public should be 
excluded because of the likelihood that exempt information would be disclosed 

 

 

  

  

 
 



Page 1 of 4 

 

 
POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
1 February 2018 AGENDA ITEM NO: 5a 
 

 
REPORT ON THE PCC’S CONSULTATION ON PROPOSALS ON THE POLICING 

PRECEPT LEVEL 
 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1. To provide the Police and Crime Panel (PCP) with a summary of the PCC’s public 

consultation on the proposed 7% increase in the policing precept (policing part of 
council tax). 

 
2. Background and Main Considerations for the Panel 

 
2.1. The public consultation on the policing precept began on 2 January 2018 and will 

close on 31 January 2018. Due to dates of the PCP meeting, this report only covers 
up to and including the 29 January 2018.  

 
2.2. Building on the improved consultation in 2017 I hope to increase awareness and 

encourage public participation through a variety of channels. This will include: 
 

 High profile media campaign launching the precept proposals for consultation 

 Short video to the precept proposals 

 Social media Q&As sessions – where the public could ask questions directly 

 Telephone Q&A session 

 Online responses 

 Participation in local radio programmes and phone-ins 

 Snap twitter polls 

 Stakeholder distribution including Councillors and MPs asking for their views on 
behalf of the people they serve 

 Presenting and discussing with area boards and parish councils to make them 
aware of consultation and request presentation of consultation video 
 

3. The Consultation 
 

3.1. I am pleased to say that more than three times the number people have participated 
in the consultation this year. A total of 635 people provided comments, feedback or 
statements had questions.  
 

3.2. Whilst I will always strive to increase awareness and there is always more that can 
be done. I am delighted that this has started a debate about the level of funding for 
Wiltshire, the local contribution to that and the level of police service the public 
expect. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



Page 2 of 4 

 

 
3.3. The table below breaks down the responses by mode of response, how many 

supported the proposals, are undecided or do not support them. 
 

Mode of Response 
 

Yes No Undecided 

Email 130 (68%) 49 (25%) 15 (7%) 

Website 248 (69%) 112 (31%) 0 

Facebook 3 (50%) 3 (50%) 0 

Community 
Messaging 

62 (86%) 7 (10%) 3 (4%) 

Postal 1 (33.3%) 1 (33.3%) (33.3%) 

TOTAL 
635 

TOTAL 
444 (70%) 

TOTAL 
172 (26%) 

TOTAL 
19 (3%) 

 
3.4. As the figures outline, the vast majority of respondents were supportive of the 

proposed increase. The overall sentiment was that respondents wanted to protect 
the police and wanted it spent on local, visible policing.  
 

3.5. 70% of respondents support my proposed increase, 26% do not and 3% are 
undecided. 
 

3.6. This matches my priorities to protect community policing and then future investment 
in police officers in future years as outlined in my medium term financial strategy. 

 
3.7. To provide balance, I have set out the main themes for respondents not agreeing to 

the proposals and my response to these themes in appendix A. 
 

 
4. Recommendations 

 
4.1. Panel members are asked to note and consider this report. 
 
 
  

Page 6



Page 3 of 4 

 

Appendix A 

 

Theme PCC response 

Their own personal financial 
situations 

I recognise that it is extremely difficult for many people 
across Wiltshire and Swindon and that is why the policing 
precept increases have been capped at 2% for the last few 
years. 

 

These increases generate £7m raised locally for policing but 
at the same time central funding has reduced by £19m. This 
means a gap of £12m, which has been saved by Wiltshire 
Police.  

 

Without this proposed increase I would have to find around 
£3m in 2018/19, 2019/20 and beyond. With 80% of my costs 
going on officers and staff this would affect frontline policing 
and their ability to keep us all safe. 

Policing should be funded 
by government 

Policing is funded by both central government and a policing 
element of council tax.  Central funding follows a funding 
formula. I am lobbying for change as it is unfair and does not 
recognise rurality, the impact of vulnerability and non-crime 
demands on the police and the capability required to support 
national threats and harms. 

 

The proportion of this funding has been changing since 2010 
with government playing less as a proportion. I have 
committed that locally raised funding should support local 
policing and local services. As set out in my plans this is the 
case and I am working to increases this amount of money 
spent locally. 

However criminality is not limited by geography and issues 
such as cybercrime, fraud and terrorism mean that victims 
and offenders are both local and international. So to protect 
the residents of Wiltshire and Swindon we must also have 
more specialised regional capability. 

Wasted money on the 
investigation of Sir Ted 
Heath 

In relation to the investigation conducted by Wiltshire Police 
on behalf of 14 police forces into Sir Edward Heath, I would 
expect serious allegations to be investigated by police. 
Police must consider allegations and have operational 
independence on the manner of those investigations. 

The investigation has been reviewed externally by the 
national team and Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of 
Constabulary (HMIC). The national investigative role, the 
investigation processes and costs were reviewed by Her 
Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and approved by the 
Home Secretary in the allocation of £1.1 million to cover the 
costs of this investigation. 

Page 7



Page 4 of 4 

 

The state of Wiltshire Police 
is currently not good 
enough. This covered 
issues such as the 
following: 
 

 Burglary 

 Rural communities 

 Policing presence. 

 Contacting the police 
and 101 

Like all police areas, there are areas we need to improve. 
There are clear plans in place to address the issues raised 
such as burglary, investment in rural policing and further 
resourcing of community policing. These are all issues I 
have raised with the Chief Constable and my office and the 
force are working to address them. This work is then 
scrutinised, supported and challenged by the Police and 
Crime Panel. 

 

Despite these challenges, I am proud that Wiltshire Police 
has been consistently rated ‘good’ by HMIC for its 
effectiveness, efficiency and in legitimacy. Broadly we have 
a good police service which uses the money given by 
taxpayers well. 

 

This is against the backdrop of being the fourth lowest 
funded police area in the country with both very low central 
funding and below average policing precept. 

  

Page 8



 

POLICE AND CRIME PANEL AGENDA ITEM NO: 5b 
1 February 2018 
 

 
PROPOSED PRECEPT FOR 2018-19 

Purpose 
 
1. This paper notifies the Panel of the precept I am proposing for 2018-19. 

 
Background 
 
2. In January 2018 I presented to the Panel a paper which showed that the government 

has made decisions surrounding both local and central funding which has a 
significant impact on the funding options available to me.   
 

3. In light of these I have revised my Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS), this is 
attached as an appendix.  The new MTFS also provides some additional information 
as requested by panel members. 

 
4. The paper I provided in January concluded with me suggesting that a £12 increase in 

the Police part of the Band D Precept (a 7% increase) was appropriate.  This would 
result in the Band D police part of the precept rising from £170.27 to £182.27 in 
2018-19. 
 

5. At the January meeting I also informed the Panel on how I would be consulting with 
the public this year.  There is a separate paper on the agenda informing the panel of 
the outcome from my consultation exercise however in summary the majority of 
respondents are supportive of a £12 increase.  
 

The Precept 
 
6. My proposal to increase the precept by £12 was based on the Minister for Policing and 

the Fire Service recognising the demands placed on policing and allowing an increase 
to this level before a referendum would be triggered.  I and many of my PCC 
colleagues have met with the minister and outlined the pressures facing policing. 
 

7. The Government also announced that core police funding would not change in 2018-
19 (i.e. a cash flat settlement). 

 
8. Considering the pressures on the police and no additional central grant, to increase 

the police part of the council tax by £12 is attractive.  The MTFS shows that by utilising 
this opportunity I can maintain local policing whilst also ensuring a strong base budget 
is in place for future years.      

 
 The Funding Available 
 
9. The table below outlines the funding available to me based on a £12 increase in the 

Band D precept.  The table assumes that the provisional central funding allocations 
are confirmed. Page 9



 

 2017-18 2018-19 

Main Home Office Grant £36.961m £36.961m 

Main DCLG Grant £20.393m £20.393m 

Legacy Council Tax Grants £5.235m £5.235m 

Total Central Funding £62.589m £62.589m 

Precept Income £42.457m £46.589m 

Council Tax Collection Fund Surplus £0.602m £0.781m 

Total Funding Available £105.648m £109.959m 

 
10. The Legacy Council Tax Grants includes the grant payable surrounding Council Tax 

Localisation and any previous freeze grants. 
 

11. Wiltshire Council and Swindon Borough Council have reported a new council tax base 
of 255,604; this is a 2.5% increase on 2017-18.  This with the £12 increase in precept 
will result in additional funding of £4.311m (4%). 

 
Funding Allocation 

 
12. I am expected to commission services from the funding available.  In addition to the 

funding reported in the table in paragraph 9 I do receive investment income (estimated 
at £0.200m in 2018-19 and £0.250m in 2017-18).  Therefore my funding available to 
commission with is £110.159m in 2018-19. The table below identifies how I intend 
using these resources. 

 

 2017-18 2018-19 

OPCC Office Costs £0.713m £0.737m 

OPCC Capital Contribution £0.742m £0.766m 

OPCC Commissioning Funds £1.229m £1.270m 

OPCC Chief Constable Allocation £103.215m £107.386m 

 £105.899m £110.159m 

 
Impact on the Chief Constable’s Budget 
 
13. The Chief Constable has identified a budget requirement of £108.979m (this is 

disclosed in the MTFS).  When compared to my funding allocation to him (£107.386m) 
a financial gap of £1.593m exists. 
 

14. A review of my reserves has been undertaken with the section 151 officer.  He has 
identified £0.253 of reserves which can be used in 2018-19 and a medium term plan 
which removes the reliance on reserves. 

 
15. This reduces the savings the Chief Constable has to find.  The new savings 

requirement is reported below; 
 

 2018-19 CC Budget 

Initial Funding gap £1.593m 

Use of reserves -£0.253m 

New Savings requirement £1.340m 

 
16. The Chief Constable has identified a plan (included within the MTFS) which will deliver 

this savings requirement. 
 Page 10



Risk 
 

17. The use of reserves is based on a risk review.  The MTFS has considered the long 
term funding of Wiltshire.  The planned use of reserves to cover risks and early 
thinking about future precept levels reduces risk.  Having general reserves of 2.5% 
and a 1% operational reserve also helps reduce risk.  

 
Legal 
 
18. I am required to receive advice from my Chief Financial Officer surrounding the budget 

and my reserves.  The Chief Financial Officer is content that my budget and the Chief 
Constable’s budget are sound and deliverable.  He has also confirmed that he 
believes my reserves are adequate to manage risk. 

 
Recommendation 
 
19. After carrying out the necessary consultation I am minded to set a precept of 

£46.589m.  This will require council tax to be set on all property bands based on 
£182.27 for a Band D property.  This represents a £12 (7%) increase on the 2017-18 
level.   
 
 

Angus Macpherson 
Police and Crime Commissioner  

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54


	Agenda
	5 Formal consideration of PCC Precept proposal
	5b Police and Crime Panel Precept Feb 2018
	5c MTFS v4


